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VISION

To Produce High Quality Cement
at the Lowest Cost

CORPORATE MISSION

. Ourmissionisto:
g Consistently produce high quality cement

. Bndeavortobe the lowest cost producer
d Achieve 20% of the market share of North

. Zone in the short term and ultimately 30% in
" thelonger term

®:: Consistently maintain a high standard of
customer service

¢ Continue to invest in human resource through
training, development and promotions from.
within whenever possible in order to meet
future expansionneeds

¢  Continue to set aside adequate funds from net
profits for fulfilling its various social
responsibilities particularly in the field of
education and health
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors take pleasure in presenting their report together with the Company's
Finarcial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 and the Auditors' Report thereon.

Overview of the Economy

'The country recorded GDIP growth of 4.14% for the fiscal year ended 30 fune 2014 which is a
slightimprovernent over growlh of 3.7% for the year before. Large Scale Manufacturing (1 SM)
grew by 5.3% as compared to 4.08% while the construction seclor registered a growth of 11.3%
againsl contraction of 1.7% in the last year. Acceleration in the construction activity in the
country primarily resulted from execution of various infrastructure projects and increased
investrent in small scale conslruction. While inflation and interest rates inched up during the
year, power shortage remained the single largest impediment to economic growth.

Industry Overview

During the vear under review, despatches of cement by the industry increased by a 25% 1033
million tonnes. Despatches in the domestic market increased by 4.3% due to increasing
construction activity. Ilowever, exports contracted by 2.9% due to slower demand and
competitive prices,

Acquisition of Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited

Subsequent to the competitive bidding for acquisition of 73.86% shares in Lafarge Pakistan
Cement Limited {1.PCLY, vour Company's bid was declared successful and Bestway entered
inte a binding agreement on 23 July 2014 for the purchase of those shares at the price of Us5
217 8 million with total entreprise value of U55328.9 mullion,

Completion of acquisition and transfer of management entails various regulatory processes
which are expected to cornpletearound January 2005,

1.PCL owns a state of the art 2.4 million tonnes per annum cement plant located in District
Chakwal, Punjab. LPCL.'s acquisition will result in Bestway's capacity increasing to 8 mellion
lonnes per annuin representing 18% of total capacity in Pakistan and making it the largest
cement manufacturer in the country.

The Board of Directors and management of your Company is exciled about the addition of
LPCL to Bestway's existing portfolio and committed to add efficiencics and synergies where
possible resuiting in better returns.

Pursuani to the acquisition of LPCL the Company shall also acquire 300,000 shares

representing 50% uf the issued share capital of Fcocen Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited held by Lafarge
Industrial Ecology International for aconsideration of K5, 30 million,
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Production and Sales
2014 2013 Increase Percentage
Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes Increase
Clinker production 3,869 025 3,708 494 160 131 4.32%
Cement produclion 4 368730 3,985,429 aE3 321 9629
Cement sales 4,371,841 3,976,740 345,101 9.94%

*Figtires for the 2004 comprise of full year for Bestway Cemment including Favoogia Planf uhile 2013
comprise of full year for Bestiony and six months of Faroogia Plant (formerly Mustehkam Cement
Limited),

Year ended 30 June 2014 was yet another year of ficree competition for cement producers, Your
Company was, howcver, able to sucressfully maintain its market share in the north zone al
around 17% and retained its posilion as one of the largest cement producers in the country.
Despite depression and competition in international markets, Bestway continued to be one of
the largest exporters of cement to Afghanistan and India.

COperating Highlights

The Company recorded sales of Rs. 37.2 billion compared to Rs 29.8 billion disring the
preceding year, which is an increase of 24.8%. Net turnover amounted to Rs. 29.0 billion
compared io Rs. 24,1 billion for the preceding vear. This increase of 20.3% was mainly due to
addition of Faroogia plant in Company's capacity for the whole of this vear compared Lo just six
nonths in the last year pursuant to merger of Mustchkam Cement Limited into Bestway
Cement Limited. 'The increase in turnover is also attributable t increase in domestic demand
and better retention prices during the vear,
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Gross profit increased to Rs, 11.4 billion from Rs, 9.9 billion last year. This increase was due tu
addition of Farvogia plant and higher turnover.

During Lhe year under review, Bestway managed to reduce its financial charges to Rs. 462
million from Rs. 1.0 billien of last vear. This decrease of 54.21% resulted mainky from healthy
cash flows inspite of slightly higher mark up rates compared with last year.

Profit before taxation far the year ended 30 June 2014 stood at Rs. 11.11 billion as compared to
Rs. .7 hillion for the previous vear. Profit after taxation for the year amounted to Rs. 8.6 billion
as compared to Rs, 6.3 billion for the year ended 30 June 2013

Your Company is among the largest tax payers in the country. During the year under review
Bestway Cement contributed to the exchequer more than Rs.6.5 billion on account of sales tax
and excise duty and Rs. 695 million on account of income tax. Inaddition, your Company pays
large amounts on accourd of varicus indirecl taxes to the federal, provincial and fncal
governments,

Earnings per share of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014 stood at Rs, 14.76 as against
restated EPS of Rs, 10L86 for the year ended 30 June 2013

Bilance Sheet

Your Company continued 1o discharge ils repaymunt obligations on all types of loans on a
tirely basis, The Company's total borrowings as at 30 June 2014 stood at Rs. 2.4 billion
compared to Rs, 7.4 billion for the same period last year.

The capital and reserves of your Company grew to Re. 29 billion as compared to Rs, 24 billion

for the vear ended 30 June 2015
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Net current assets on 30 June 2014 stood at Rs, 785 million as against net currenl assets of Rs.
1,221 million on 30 June 2003,

Crther Investments

Your Company's investment in United Bank Limited continues ta he highly prefitable for the
Company. The Bank's profit before tax for the vear ended 31 December 2013 stood at ks, 28.96
billion as against Rs. 28.32 billion for the corresponding period last year which represents an
increase of 2.26%.

We are delighted to inform you Lhat Lhe Bank paid out a cash dividend of 105% for the year
ended 31 December 2013 thus providing a relurn of Rs. 983 million on your investment in the
Bank ascompared to Rs. 890 million for lhe yvearended 31 December 2012

Appropriation

The directors and management team of your Company are mindful of providing a superior
return to Lhe shareholders. In view of superb performance by vour Company during the
current period, the Directors fecl great pleasure inrecommending a final dividend of Bs. 2.5 per
share. Interim dividends of Rs. 2.0 per share and Rs 2.5 per share were declared on 25 February
2014 and 24 April 2014 respectively which have already been paid out during the year. The total
dividend is to b approved by the sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 23
Septermber 2014,

EFra

Planls' perforntance

Your Company's management follows anelaborate plan of preventative maintenance, which it
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has adopted right from the beginning. This proactive approach ensures efficient and stable
operations with minimum distuptions, Qur well-knit team of dedicated managers, engineers,
technicians and other roembers of the management and administrative siaff play key role inthe
successtulimplementation of thisapproach.

During the vear under review, all our cement plants and the Waste Heat Recovery plant
operated satisfactorily.

Alternative Energy & CI'I’ Initiatives

Cement manufacturing is an energyv-inlensive process. Power represents one of the largest
costs of production. Given the ever-increasing cast of electricity in the country the management
of your Company decided to setup two waste heat recovery power plants at Iattar and
Faroogia with generation capacitics of 7.5 MV and 6 MV respectively.

The implementation of these projects will not only generate 13.5~14 MW power but also reduce
emission of waste gases and have a very positive impact on environment. These projects will
significantly reduce Company s depandence on external source of electricity thus helping in
reduction of cost of production. The projects are making good progress and are expected to be
fully operational before the end of tinancial year 20M4-15.

In order to further reduce reliance on external power, vour Company undertook three other
captive power projects during the year. Three gas-fired gensets having rated capacity of 9.6 MV
were successfully installed and commissioned at Hattar plant. A coal-fired boiler of 25 tommes
per hour capacity was installed at Chakwal plant for effective utilisation of exisling power
generaling system of 14~15 MV installed with waste heat recovery power plant which
previously remained unutilised during single kiln operation. Four gas-fired gensets having
raled capacity of 12.8 MV woere also installed at Chakwal plant but so far remain non-
operalional due to non-availability of gas.
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Quality Assurance

Bestway Cement is a company driven by etficiency and quality consciousness, Strict quality
comtrol procedures are applied o ensure that these aims are achieved, Some of the best quality
control equiprnent in Pakistanisin use at the plants. Bestway's laboratories are equipped with
state-of-the-art technology including X-ray Fluorescent Analyser and Diffractometer, Bestway
Cement introduced this technology in Pakistan for the first time. By virtue of this equipment,
Lthe Company has been able to consistently produce better quality cement than is currently
avatlableinthe country.

Marketing

Bestway is the 2nd largest cement producer in Pakistan. Your Company continues to be among
the top brands both in the domestic market and various international markets where itis firmly
established as the premium brand. Bestway Cement continues to maintain its position as the
largest exporter of cement to Afghanistan and India. Your Company has been able to maintain
ils status as a market leader due to its consistently superior qualily, effective marketing
slralegy, customercare and sheer dedication of its marketing team.

Your Company is among the few in the country which ave certified to export its cement to South
Africa, [ndia and Sri Lanka. It has recently acquired EC-Certificate of Conformily also. These
certifications enable Bestway to pursue export opportunitics in India, Soulh Africa, its
neighbouring countlries, the Furopean Community and countries where EC cerlification is
required, Sri Lanka and various other regional and international markets.

Acquisition of Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited will further strengthen Bestway's standing in
both domestic and international markets.
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Training and Develapment

Bustway places great importance on the teaining, development and education of its peraonnel.
In order to keep its workforce abreast with best operalional technigues and practices, technical
and general managerial training courses are organised for various departments and categories
of personnel, Staff members are also sent on courses, workshops and seminars organised
externally by olher institutions. The Company actively encourages and assists its employeesin
pursuitof professional development and career enhancement.

As part of its commitment to skills development and grooming of worktorce, Bestway
regularly employs freshly qualified graduates, professionals and even unskilled human
resource. There are carefully planned training programs in place to ensure that these personnel
are equipped with necessary knowledge, hands on experience and confidence to become
skilled and productive resource.

At any given time Bestway employs more than 100 trainee engincers, management trainees
and apprentices. Trainee engincers undergo intensive training in clectrical, mechanical and
mining departments while management trainees are inducted in marketing, finance, personnel
and administration where they are carefully trained to become effective managers in the future.
Apprentices are employed in various technical departments at all the factories. While somue of
those trainees and apprentices are retained in the Company, others move on to other industries
where they successfully build upon the foundation provided to them at Bestway Cement
through the training imparted to them for the advancement of their carcers and contributing
towards the developmentof thecountry.
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Health, 5afety and Environment

Your Company attaches highest priority to the health and safety of its persunnel who are an
essential and valuable component of its operatioms. Initiatives including safety meetings,
incident reporting, safety audits, good housckeeping and hygiene controls are actively and
consistently pursued to instil safe behaviour inall personnel. Bestway Cement actively pursues
protection and up gradation of the environment by ensuring that its plants continue to comply
with established environmental quality standards at ali times. Our plants not only meet the
stringent cnvironmenlal guality standards prescribed by the Environment i’rotection
Authority of Pakistan, they even surpass the international standards for emissions. Not only
does Bestway have a robust environmental control mechanism in place to ensure a cleaner
environment, it also conducts a quarterly review of jts production facilities through an
independent expert.

Your Company always participates in various environment uplift programmes including the
Tree Flantation drive each year by planting thousands of plants and trees in our factory areas
and surrounding hills in order to contribule our share towards the improvement of
environment.

Youwould be delighted to learn that for the fourth year running your Company has been given
the prestigious Environment Fxcellence Award by the National Forum for Environment and
Health.

Sacial Responsibility

Your Company regards itself as a responsible corporate citizen. Right from the outset, Bestway
Cement has taken its social responsibilities, particularly towards the local community, very
serfously and takes pride in its active participation in the development and welfare of the
under-privileged. Bestway Foundation, the charitable trust of the Bestway Group to which
your Company is a major contributor, was established in the year 1957, It works in close
association with Bestway Cement and its main goal is provision of education in rural
communities. The Foundation is also certified from the Pakistan Centre for Philanthropy.

(Quality education is fundamental to building a strong and vibrant saciety. This aspect has long
bueen neglected especially in the rural areas where masses are still deprived of good educational
facilities. Bearing this in mind the Foundation constructed a brand new college building in a far
ftung and backward area of Gujar Khan T'ehsil to provide free and qual ity educational facilities
to girls who would otherwise have had to go without higher education due to lack of a Girls
College in the area. The project consisting of numerous classrooms, laboratories, facilities for
extracurricular activities and accommodation for the residence of the faculty members was
entirely funded by the Foundation and became operational in 2011 with a cost of Rs, 30 million.
Recently the college has applied for affiliation with the University of the Punjab and degrec
classes should commence very soon,
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In keeping with its philosophy, the Foundation decided to establish a large state-of-the-art
school in District Chakwal. Suitable land has been earmarked for the project. Bnilding plans
have been finalized and necessary arrangements are being made to commence the construction
wark very soon.

In August 2005, the Foundation had adopted 29 dysfunctional government schools in
underprivileged rural areas as a ublic-Private Fartnership initiative. It spenta huge amount of
money on renovating the dilapidated buildings, provision of furniture, scicnce and computer
laboratories and necessary teaching aids, hiring of new teaching stafl and proper retraining of
the few existing teachers, Through tireless work and huge investment thosc schools have been
turned into centres of excellence where more than 4,300 students are educated every year. The
Foundation has remained fully committed to the initiative ever since and devotes a vast amount
of resources and time annually on cnsuring that quality education is imparted from those
schools,

The Foundation continues to provide scholarships to a large number of talenfed students
throughout the country, a vast majority of whom are medical and engineering students, who
for want ol sufficient resources arc unable to continue their higher studies.

During the year the Foundation also provided financial assistance of more than Rs. 3 million to
various edncational and health institutions. Some of the beneficiarics of that assistance include
Inslitue of Business Administration, Muhammad Gulistan Khan Foundation, Layton
Rahmatulla Benevolent Trust, National Society for Mentally and Fmotionally Iandicapped
Children.

In addifon to pursuing its core objective of improving education, Bestway Foundation also
pravides financial assistance to a large number of widows and indigents of the local community
in the shape of monthly stipends.

In the arca of basic health, free medical facilitics are provided to the local covumunity through
dispensarics located at our factory premiscs. During the year under review alonwe, mors than
14,000 patients benefiled from those free dispensaries.

Your Company also contributes generously towards various welfare causes such as flood relief
aclivities and projects of social and communal uplift.

Future Prospects

Once completed, Bestway's recent acquisition of Lafarge Pakistan Cement Limited should
cnable the Company to have deeper and wider market penetration, broader product offering
and even better margins through cconomies of scale.

Power tariffs have continued to cscalate unabated and further increases are on the horizon.
However, Bestway's decision to sctup waste heat recovery power plants at Hattar and Farooqia
plants should help the Company to mitigate theimpact of power tanff hikes in the future.
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Coal prives have remained faiely stable and no major increase in prices is anticipated in the
foreseeable future, As fuel represents one of the largest costs ol production, stable coal prices
bode well for the Company.

Inflation has kept below double digits and is likely o remain under check which should enable
the central bank to reduce the inleresl rates. This, coupled with the Covernment's focus on
infrastructure development should encourage economic activity in the country resulting in
positive impactoncemenl demand in the domestic market.

Bestway is one of the most efficient and lowest cost producers in the industry, This should
enable Bestway to easily absorb any unforeseen cost pressures, Increasing cement
consumption should result in higher prices which will help the Company to maintain healthy
margins.

Bestway is firmly established as the leading brand in Afghanistan and India and your
Company will seck to expand its share in those markets. Afghanistan continues to generate
good demand for Pakistani cement, in particular Bestway, With smoother and increased
movernent of goods across the Wagah border, Indian market holds a ot of promise lor your
Company.

Your Company is among the few in the country which are certified to expaort its cement ta Soulh
Africa, India and Sri Lanka. It also recently acquired I'C-Certificate of Conformily. Beslway
will continue to pursue export opportunities i regional and international markets in addition
to South Africa, its neighbouring countries, 5ri Lanka and all such countries where EC
certificationis applicable.

Like always, vour managemenl is cognizant of the challenges that lie ahead and will continue
to make all out efforts to ensure further growth and superior returns in the ensuing years,

The Directors are pleased tostate that:

The tinancial statements prepared by the management of the Company fairly present
its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

The Company has maintained proper books of account.

Appropriate accounting policies have been adopted and consistently applied in
preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasanable
and prudent judrement.

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monilored. The system itself is also subject to continuous
review for enhancement wherever and whenever necessary.

There are ne doubits about the Company's ability fo continue as a going concerm.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,
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as detailed inthe listing regulations.

None of the ditectors, executives, spouses and minar children transacied any shares of
the Company during the book clasure perinds notified in lhe year under review.,
Koy financial data for the last six vears is given in subsequent pages.
Outstanding taxes, duties and charges have been disclosed in the financial staterments,
: A statemnent of the pattern of sharehelding in the Caompany as at 30 June 2014 of coerkain
classes of shareholders whose disclosure is reguired under the Code of Corporate
Governance is in subsequent pages,

Attendance by each director in the 11 Board Meectings held during the vear was as

follows:
Nuo. of rneetings attended
Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez 11
Zameer Mohammed Choudrey 11
Arshad Mehmood Chaudhary 11
Muhammad [rfan Anwar Sheikh 11
Chulam Sarwar Malik 11
Mehmaood Afzal 11
Sved AsifShah 11

Attendance by each director in the 4 Audit Committee meetings held during the year

was as follows:
No. of mectings attended

Syed Asif Shah 04
Ghulam Sarwar Malil: i
wehmood Afzal {4

Attendance by cach dircetor in the 3 IIR and Remuneration Committee meetings held

during the yvear was as follows:
Mo, of meelings attended

dMuhammad Irfan Anwar Sheikh 03

Chulam Sarwar Malik (03

Arshad Mcehmood Chaudhary 03
Auditors

The present anditors, Messrs KPMUG: Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants retire at the
conclusion of the Meeting and, being aligible, have offered themselves for reappointment, The
Audit Committes of the Company having considered the matter recomumend the retiring
auditorsfor reappointment.
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Acknowledgement

The Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continued support, contribution
and confidence demonstrated in the Company by its sharcholders, members of staff, customers,
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Chicf Execulive
30 August 2014
Islamabad
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Statement of Value Addition

2014 2013

Rs 000 % Rs '000 %
Gross turnover 37,190,420 174 29,810,044 178
Less: Operating expenses (17,830,355 {84} {14,377,565) {85}

19,360,065 o1 15,4322 .475 g1
Add: Share of profit fram associate 1,662,211 8 1,436 217 2

Qther income 138,371 i} 55,371 0

Total value added 21,160,647 100 16,524 066 100
Distributed as follaws:
Employee remuneration and benefits 1,023,180 5 1,103,879 7
To Government as:

Company tasation 2,562,419 12 2,386,162 14

Levies 6,523,544 31 4,623,337 27

Royalty and excise duty 2HE,725 i 167,915 1

Workers fund 596,702 3 3I7RE,397 2

8,971,792 47 7,562,508 45
To shareholders as:

Dividend™®?* 4,055,604 19 2,312,208 14
To snciety as:

Charitable donations £6,069 o 79,553 *n
Fimancial charges to providers of finance 462,030 2 1,009,128 &
Retatned in business

Depreciation 1,061,031 5 273,954 5

Amortization 5,919 0 6,775 0

Met earnings 4,494,932 21 3,975,463 23

5,561,882 26 4,856,192 79
21,160,647 100 16,924,066 100

* Meglighle
** Includes approgriation proposed by BOD after the balance sheet date.
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Wealth Distribution

2014 2013
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Balance Sheet at a Glance
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Profitability at a Glance

Profitability
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Analysis of Turnover

Gross Turnover Breakup
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Key Operating and Financial Data for Six Years

I__ 2014 | 2013 [ 22 | 2011 | 20 | 209 |
Operating Rasults Rupeeas in millians
Turngwer [aef) 28,9451 24074 17789 13,332 13,343 13,814
Costof sales 17,570 14,104 12,003 10,418 11,564 10,044
aross profit 11,380 9,974 5.BHE 2,814 1,768 4770
Operating profit 10,3T1 8,577 5,152 2,405 &71 3163
Financial charges 462 1,004 1,916 2485 2223 2.286
Profitfoss) before taxation - Restated 1,113 8 681 4 501 Y6 (853} 1.559
Profitioss) after taxation - Restated 8,551 6,283 35T A5 [Ea0Y 1328
Balance Sheet Rupees inmlllians
Shareholders' funds - Restaled 28,575 23,955 18471 14,611 10312 13,1231
Operating fixed assats 24,256 23,508 15.84% 16,439 16,896 16,281
Lang term financing - 5116 2.a74 g,221 11,571 1,788
Liability sutject to finance lease - - o7 110 154 194
Met current liakitities T35 1,208 2317 4 526 4310 2 605
Significant Finangial Ratios Percentages
Gross probt ratic 38,3 41.41 202 21.86 13.27 32.20
Met profit ratio 29.54 2612 20407 4.88 {4.68} .26
Intzrest coverage ratio 2505 .60 3.38 1.36 0.6z 168
Feturn on equily 28,92 26.25 19.34 4.46 {6,300 1312
Eamings/lozs) per share 14.76 1085 6.18 112 (2. 00} 4.08
Davidend £5.00 20.00 - - - .

In thousand metric tonnes
Despatches of cemaont 4,372 3,977 3,270 3,208 4,253 3,350
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

This statement 1s being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (CC0) contained in
the Tisting Repulution £ 35 of listing regulations of the Karachi Stock Exchange Limited (K5} for the
purpose of establishing o framework of good governance, wherehy a lisled company is managed in
campliance with the best practicey of cotporate governance,

The Company has applicd the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company cneourages representation of mdependent non-executive directors and dircetors
representing minorily interests on its board of dircetors. At the tme of [atest elections of directors, no
sharcholder other than the retiting directors contested the clection. Hence at present the board does
uot mchide independent dircetors, non-executive directors as ong third of total number of directors
and directors representing minarity shareholders. Further the Chaiman of the Board is also an
Exceutive Director, Represcntative position on the board is as follows:

Mame of the Director Representative Position
Sir Mohammed Anwar Perver Executive

hr, Zameer Mohammed Choudrey Executive

b Arshad Mehtmood Chaudbary Mon-Lxecutive

Mr M. Irfan A Sheikh Exccutive

Mr. Ghulam Sarwar Malik Ex¢outive

Mr. Mehmood Afzul Executive

Syed Azif Shah Executive

o]

The directors have confirmed that none of them 1s scrving as a director onimore than seven listed
companies. mcluding this Company.

3. All the resident dircetors of the Company are registercd as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any toan to a basking company, s DFLor an NBF] or, being a member ofa
stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that steck cxchange.

4. Nocasual vacancy accurred on the buard of directors of the Company during the vearending
30 June 2014,

5. The Company has prepared a *Code of Conduct™ and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company alongwith its supporting policies and
procedures,

6. The Board has developed a visinn/mission statement, overall corparate sirateyy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of the particulars of the significant policies
alongwith the dates on which they were approved oramended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the hoard have been duly exercised and decision on material transactions,
includitg appeintment and determination of remuneration and lerms and conditions of
employment of CEQ, other executive and non-gxceutive directors, have been taken by the
Beard/shareholders.

B. The mectings of the Board were presided by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a dircetor
elected by the Board for this purpuse and the board met a1 least once in every quarter. Written
natices of the board meetings. alongwith the agenda and working papers were circulated at least
sevetl days before the meetings. The minutes of the meeting were appropriately recorded and
circulated,
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Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

9, The Company has armanged Orientation Courses for its Directors during the preceding years Lo
make them aware of their duties and responsibilities. Morcover in compliance with the
requirements of the CCG, two dircclors have obtained certification under “the Board
Developnient Series” program offered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan,

1 0. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Scerelary and Head Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of their cenployment.

1. The Dircclors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the
CCG and [ully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12, The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEOQ and the CFO before
approval by the board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company ather
than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholdmngs.

14, The Company has coraplied with abl the corporate and financial reporting requircenis of the
CC.

15, The Board has formed an audit commiites. Ttcomprises of three members, and all ol the members
inchading the Chaitman of the Committee are executive direelors.

16, The meetings of the audit committea were held at least once in every guarter prior to the approval
of interin and final results of the Company. As required by the CCG the terms of reference of the
committee have been formed and advised to the committec for compliance.

17, The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. [t comprises of three members out
ofwhich only ong member is a non-executive director.

14, The Board has set up un cffective internal audit function which is working since inception. The
metbers of the department are considered suitably qualificd and experienced for the purpose
and are conversunt with the policics and procedures of the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confinmed that they have been givena satisfactory
ating under the Quality Control Review Programme of the Institute of Chartered Accountanis ol
Pukistan, that they or any of the partners ol the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the
Tnternational Federation of Accountants' {IFAC) guidelines on the code of ethics as adopted by
Institute of Chartered Accountanis of Pakistan.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appeinted to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations of the KSFE and the auditors have
confimmed that they have ohserved the IFAC guidclines inthis regard.

21, The 'closed period', priot to the anmouncement of interim/final results, and business decisions,

which may matcrially affect the market price of the Company's securities. was determined and
intimated to the Directors, employces and the Stock Exchange.

annual Report 2014 25 Bestway Cement Limited




Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

22, Muacrialfprice seasitve information has been disseminated amoeng all market participants at
anee lhrowgh the Stock Exchange.

23, We conlirm that all other mateniol principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

Forand on behatf of the Board

Zameer Mohummed Choudrey
ChiclExceutive

JAuenst 2014
Islamalrad
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Review Report

Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with
the Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governanee ( “the Code™ Y prepared by the Board of Directors of Bestway Coment Limited.
{*'the Cumpany™} for the year ended 30 Junc 2014 to comply with the requirements of Listing Regulation
xo0.35 of the Karachi Stock Exchange where the Company is listed.

‘The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Dircetars of the Company. Cur
responsibility is to review, to the cxtent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the
Staternent of Compliance reflects the status of the Company s compliance with the provisions of the Code
and report if it does not and 1o highlight any non-compliance with the requirments of the Code . A review i3
lirnited primarily to inguirics of the Company personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtained anunderstanding of the accounting
and internal cuntrol systems sufficient to plan the audil and develop an effective audil approach. We are
not required to consider whether the Board of Directors® statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate
govarance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Commities, and upon recomendation of (he
Audit Committez, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval 115 related party
transactions, distinguishing between transactions carricd out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length trunsactions and transactions which are not executed at ann’s length price and recording
proper justification for using such altemative pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board
of Dircctors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedurs (o
determine whether the relaled party transactions were undertaken atarm'’s length price or .

Based on our feview, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to belicve that the Statement of
Compliance docs not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
best practices contained inthe Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2014,

Further, we highlight below instances of non -compliance with the reguirements of the Code as rellected
it the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statemnent of Compliance:

i. As stated in paragraph 01, the Board of Direetors does not include independent director, non
executive dircctors as one third of total pumber of directors and direetors representing nuinonty
share holders and further the Chuirman of the Board is an executive director. Consequently, as
stated in paragraph 15, all the members including the Chainnan of the audit committee are
exeeutive directors and as stated in paragraph 17, HR and rermuneration committee includes only

one hon-executive director. V
WA R @acame Ya

Drate: 30 August 2014 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Islamabad Chartered Acconntants
Enpagement Partner

Muhammad Rehan Chughtai

Annual Report 2014 57 Bestway Cement Limited




Report of the Audit Committee

The rode of the Board Audil Commuities in the context of the Board's roader governance feamework 15 1o
DVEIsee:

*  Theintegrity of financial statemenis;
*  The appointment, remuneration, gquabilication, mdependence and performance of  External
Auditgrs

*  Theperformance and teadership of Internal awdit funetion

= Theoutzome of Itternal Audit activities

= Theclfecuveness of system of intemal controls and risk management

“»  Complianee with legal and regulatory requircments

= Compliance by management with constraints imposed by Board
The Audit Committee has concluded its review of the conduet and operations of the Company during
2014 and report thal:

« The Finaneial Statements, Directors Report and other information in the Annual Report have
been reviewed by the Chiel Exceutive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer They acknowledpe
their responsibility for true and fair presentation of the Company's financial condition and resulis,
compliance with repulations and applicable accounting standards and establishment and
madintenance of internal controls and svstems of the Company,

« Appropriate sccounting policies have been consistently applicd. Applicable Intemational
Accounting Standards were followed in preparation of finangial statements ol the Company on a
going concern basis, fur the [nancial year ended 30 Tune 2014, which prosent fairly the state of
aftairs, results of operations, profits, cash tlows and changes in equity of the Company for the
year under reviaw.

= The preparation of Financial Statements is in conformity with Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards as applicable in Pakistan and requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. Tt
also requires manggement 10 exercise its judgment in the pracess of applying the Company's
accounting policies, Esumates and judgments were continvally ¢valuated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events thal arc believed
Lo be rensonable under currant cireumstanaes,

«  Proper and adequate accounting records have beon maintained by the Company in accordance
with the Companmics Ordinance, 1984 The financial stalenients comply with the requirements of
the Fourth Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and (he exlemal reporting is consistent
with Management processes and adequite for shareholder needs.

*  The Company has issued a *Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance™
which has also been revicwed and certified by the Auditors ofthe Company.

+  Understanding and compliance with Company codes and policies has been atfimmed by the
Manayement and emplavees of the Company individually. Employees have confinmed and
signed theirmderstanding of the Company's code ol ethics.

« Al direetor indhiregt truding and holdings of Comgrany's shares by Directors & executives or their
spouses were notified in writing to the Company Secretary along with the price, number of
shares, form of share certificates and nature of transaction which were notificd by the Company
Secretary te the Board within the stipulated time. All such holdings have been disclosed in the
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Report of the Audit Committee

Pattern of Sharcholdings. The Annual Secrclunial Compliance Certificates are being filed
regufarly within stipulated time.

+  Closed periods were duly determined and antounced by the Company, precluding the Birectors,
the Chicf Exgeutive and executives of the Cotmpany from dealing in Company shares, prior to
cach Board meeting involving announcement of interim / final results. distribution to
sharcholders or any other business decision, which could materially affeet the share market price
of Company, along with maintenance of confidentiality of all business information.

[nternal Audit

»  The Company's system of internat control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated
for cffectiveness and adequacy, The internal control framework has been effectively
implemented through an independent in-house [ntemal Audit function established by the Roard
which is independent af the Txternal Audit funclion,

»  The Audil Committee has ensured the achievement of operational, compliance, risk
management. financial reporting and control ohjectives, safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and the shareholders wealth at all levels within the Company.

= The Internal Audit function has carried out its duties under 1he charter detined by the Commitee.
The Committes has revicwed material Internal Audit Gndings, taking appropriate action or
bringing the matters to the Board's attention where requircd

+  The Head of Internal Audit has direct access to the Chairman of the Board Audit Committes and
the Committee has ensured siatting of personnel with suflicient internal audit acumen and that
the function has all necessary access to Management and the right to seek information and
explanations.

+  During the year four Board Audit Committce meetings were held 10 cnsure that the Audit
Function eifeetively performed its assigned task.

»  Coordination between the External and Intemal Auditors was facilitated to ensure cfliciency and
contribution to the Company's objectives, including a reliable financial reporting system and
compliance with laws and regulations.

External Auditors

«  The statutury Auditors of the Company, KPMG Taseer ladi & Co., Chartered Accountants, have
commpleted their Audit assignment of the Company’s Financial Statements and the Statement of
Compliance with the Code of Corparate Governance for the financial year ended 30 June 2014
and shal! retire om the conclusion ofthe 211 Annuat General Mceting,

»  The Audit Committer has reviewed and discussed Audit observations and Audit Management
Letter with the External Auditors,

+  The Auditors have been allowed direct access to the Committee and the effectiveness,

independence and objectivity of the Auditors has thereby been ensured. The Auditors atiended
the General Meeting of the Company during the year and have indicated their willingness to
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Report of the Audit Committee

continue ag Auditors.

v The Audit Committes has recommended the reappointment of KPMGO Tascer Hadi & Co,
Chartered Accountanis, as Txternal Auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 201 5.

Syed Asif Shah
Chairman, Board Audil Commitlee

30 August 2014
Islamabad.
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Auditors’ Report to the Members

We have audited the annexed  balance shect of Bestway Coment Limited { “the Company™as a1 30 Jung
2014 and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow stalement
and statemenl ol changes 1o eguity gether with the notes fotring part theoeel, for the year then ended
and wo state thal we have obtamed all the inTormation and explanations which, o the best of our
knowledge and beltef, were necessary Tor the purposes of ouraudit,

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management 1o establish and mamtaim a sysiem ol micrmsl
control, and prepare snd present the above sand statements in confmmity wilh the approved accounting
standards and the requirements of the Companes Ondinance, 1984, QOur responsibility 18 w0 expross an
opiniom on these statemoents based onouraudit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standunds as applicable m Pakistan. These
standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtam rcasonable assurance aboutl whether the
above said statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit ineludes examimimg on 2 1651 basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said stutements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by managemenlt, as well as, cvaluating
the overall presentation of financial statements. We belicve that cur audit provides a reusonable basis Tor
our opinion and, after due verification, we report that

{al in our opinion, proper books of avcount have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984,

by inour opinion -

{i} the balance sheet and  profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with
1he books ol account and are further in accordance with accounting palicies consistently
applicd except for the change as mentioned innot 3.1 to which we concur;

{ii) the cxpenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business;
and

{iii} the business conducted, invesiments made and (he cxperdiiure incorred during the year
were in accordance with the objecis olthe Comprany:

(c} in our opinion and to the best of our informaton and according to the explanations given to us, the
balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income,  cash flow
statement and  statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof
contorm with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, pive the information
required by the Companics Ordinance, 1984, m the manngr 50 required and respectively give a
true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 30 June 2014 and of the protit, its cash
Hlows and changes in equity Tor the year then ended; and

(d) in cur opinien, Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X VI
of 19807 deducted by the Company and deposited in Central Zakat Fund established under

seclion T of that Ordinance. V )
Wonk, orerecthel Yt

Islamabad KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,
30 August 2014 Chartered Accountants
Enpapement Partner:

. Rehan Chughiai
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2014

214 2013
Mute o Rupecs in thousands. ...
Restated
SIEARL CADLMITAL AND RESERVES
Avthorised share capital
TFOOLO00 000 {200 32 7HLB00,00H0 ) ordinary shares of Re. LD cach 70040, 604 70000300
Isaued, subscrebed and paid up share capital i 5,793,849 3.701 8440
Share premivm FIZ5TH 322571
Lxchange wranslatian reserve 1,H9.484 1.0 (8T
Cash Aow hedge resenve - (1,097
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments 138 178473
L mappropriated prodit 18,283,450 13 504,017
28,574,096 23,944 099
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Leng term financing - secwred 5 - 4815972
Long term musharaka - securcd 3 - 200, (00
Leng term shirkat-ul-melk - secured 7 - E(ICHCACNH
Long term advanee 5,988 -
Treterred liabilities ] 5,347,783 4051910
5,355,771 9,163 852
CURRENT LIARILITIES
Trade and other payables 9 4,809,142 4422079
Markop aeerued 12,324 68,527
Shaort term boerowings - securcid 10 2373832 Y52 .645
Current portion of long term {inancing 5 - [052,778
Carrent portion of lizhilily against assers subject to Anance lcas.e - 39061
Current purtion of long term muosharaka & - 100,000
Current porion of shickai-ul-melk 7 - 100,000
Provision for taxation - net 160,738 -
T 440,036 6,735,300
41,376,503 39,504,371

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS I

The annexed notes [Tom 1o 53 form an intezeal parl of these loaocial statements,

CHIEF EXECLUTIVE
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2014

2014 215
Mute vo--Rupees in thoopsands.. ..
Restated

NON CUIRRENT ARSETS
Properly, plant and equipment 12 24,224,368 23470214
Irtangible assel 13 KFCrr ) 38,203
Investmend propetty 14 M5, 785 347383
Long term investment L3 8444559 T.933.97%
Long tertn advance 8,006 | 2,005
Long term deposits [ o323 G0.2660

G454 I1LR92 Add
CURRENT ASSETS
Slores, spare parts and loose tools 17 4,044,671 3510782
Stock in trade 16 1932012 2,223 435
Teade debts - cansidered good i 571981 288672
Advances 20 400,784 214,43
Deposits and prepayments 21 21,518 £4,50%
Intgrest acerued 704 144
{Oither receivahles 1.8 1.321
Due [Tom Covemment agencics 12 1040734 1351067
Bank balances 23 216,202 AT 400

B.231 8K TATR,727
41,376,503 39,869,371

DIRECTOR & CFO
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 30 June 2014

Turnover - nct
Cost of zales

Gross profit
Adminisirative cxpenses
Distribution cosl

(ther expenses

Finance cnst
Other income

Sharc of profit in associated company
Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluied

Notre

24

26
27
28
20
3

15.1

35

The annexed notes from | to 38 form an intezral part of these financial statements.

CHIEF EXECUTIYE
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214 2013
...{Rupcees in thousands)....
[estated
28.950.528 24074 046
17.570.204 [4.103.717
11,380,324 G.5T329
2ass 05463
706,974 TUTTOR
506,702 378,397
462.030 1,000,128
(138,371} {35,3700
1,929 4% 2725418
1,662,211 1436217
11,113,045 HOa1.128
(2,562,419} {2.386.102)
8,550 626 6,294 965
wnlRUpees)....
[4.76 10,88
DIRECTOR & CFO

Bestway Cement Limited



Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
wonfBupees in thousands)...
Restated
Prolit lor the year ¥.550.626 6,204 6
Exchanue trunslation reserve 26,402 [44.570
fDeficit) f surplus on revaluation of avalluble for sale imvestment {195.728) 544, Had
Related delirred tax liability on surplus Adeficit) on revaluation of
Available for sale investments 19,553 (54,485
Gawn on cash Now hedge reserve 1,21% 3,205
Related deterred tax Liability on cash flow heduae reserve (122} {3301
(Hber comprehensive incotme for the vear - net ol tax {145,838) 637931
Items that will never he reclassified to profic and Lloss
Actuarial loss on gratuity valoation (Mole £.2.1) {7.165) {3475
Tax adjustment on pratwity valuatian 1.973 1,232
{5,192) {3,243)
Total comprehensive income Ter the vear 8,306,508 6,924 654

The annexed notes from | to 38 form an integral part of these financtal statements.

CHIEF FXECUTIVE DIRFCTOR & CIFO
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 30 June 2014

EDIE 2013
Note o[ Rupeas in theusandsh ..,
CASH FLOWSE FROM OPERAT ING ACTIVITIES
Trodic hoedisre wexalion 111134045 RART 2R
Adjustments fur:
Crain oon dusposaz of uperiting Nasd assers [2d 2Ry 14,5641
Copciatica 1A 1,051 FERIAT]
Auncertizacion S000 B
[aztal inzeme frow irrsesiogn prapoisy (1630 {12670
Profit on deposil accens (51,7940 120,268
i on e cment o eesoment property W fakr valas 3,791 -
gy of e in associaled company [LAGZZITY (1878, 21TH
Finaner anal ELrARL 1008, 128
Provizion for stalt netinement bensNis 38552 35434
[126.957T) 3943 271
10 R 058 [RFENE]
Tlreneasa) S derenss in curvent asses
Z0rgs, Apare parts and Toose tocels 32T, 40k (177530
Srnck in rade 100,823 {500 41817)
Trade debts (283,209} 170, LH)
Advanoes {186_T41) [23.008)
Lrepansils and propayricnes 43,4060 (48521
e regeivables (499) f.i3T
Mo Frann Ciovernment agrans s {111,140d) 11470
Inerease in awrrent Iablilies
Trade and ather pavables 329,73 §22,013
[245.414) 137,285
Cash penecated fram aperatinns 14640, 500 9267 (K1
I'iozinee cusl paid [518,533) {L.3d14%7)
St netimenient Beoetits paid {13,962 {14,590}
lneome Lax panl 1694.382) (110,576}
(1.227,577) {1067,
Ped eosh generated from operaling aelivities EETREIX) 7,395
CASH FLOWS FROM TSVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in operating fived assets [EE kN {287,777
Aclditions i capital wark in progness 1,049,563} {166,952 )
Proweceds from sale of operating lsed asscrs 42,802 1S
Rent reacived Brom investment ppety 045 I3 5af
Irecrewse o lung wenn advance 4AM3 .10
Pralil on deposic accnunts eeeeived 51230 20,167
Addilicine tor bong rerm depesils (57) 1239
Toividend ceceived L EEY BEUBYS
Addigaons in Jung feri ionEtneat - 49.425)
Mt cash (used i) genevated from investing wetivities [#91055) ARG
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
[.nkg cerm ficaneing - dishursenents - b0
- FRpAY RIS (5508, 750 (4552639
Long senn shinkar-wl-mclk - repayoents [ 2IEL UMK -
Linlilily againg asset sunject o Mo ks - repayments {3%,061) {52,429
[.oag term mirabahs - nepayments - LB R AT
Lonpe teon musharika - repsyments 300, 1R -
[vidend paid (3.618,9901) LERD,03RY
Foccezse i sldn erm horrooaing: - 12,944,707
Mel casl wsed in financing aclivitivs (10,006,807 [#,284.575)
Met deceease in cash and cash equivalents {1,527,50d) [24000,352)
Cash and cash cquivalents 4t heginning of fhe year {GH29.974) (51270
Cush gnd cush cquivalents resnsfersed rom MO wader Scheme of amalgamation - 109113
Cush nnd cash ¢quivalents at end of 1he year kL] [2.187.570) [S29.978)
The sriog <l fedes from & ko 2 Form an oyl part of these finameial slidements,
CHIEF EXECUTIYE DIRECTOR & CFO
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. THFE COMPANY ANDITS OFPERATIONS

Restway Cement Limited ("the Company™y is a public company incorporated in Pakistan on 22
December 19%3 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and s listed on the Kurachi Stock
Fxchange Limiled since 89 April 2001, The Company 13 principally engaged in production and
sale of cement, The Company's registered office 1s situaled at Bestway Building, 19-A, College
Road, F-7 Muarkar, [slamabad.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards {(IFRS}issued by Intemational Accounting Standard
Board as are natified under (he Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, [n case requiremcnts differ, the provisions of or
directives issued under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall prevail,

2.2 Basis of meusurement

These financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
fiollomwing;

- investment property has been measured at fair value:

- Yiahility related 1o staff retivement benefit are measured at valies determined through actuariat
valuation; and

- available [or sale investments have been mcasured atfairvalue.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in thesc [inancial statements are meusured using the currency of the primary
cconomic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented
in Pakistan Rupecs (PKR), which is the Company's functional and presentation curreney, Figures
have been rounded off to the neares| thousand of rupees unless otherwisc stated.

2.1 Lse of estimates and judgments

The preparation of [nancial statements in contormity with the approved accounting standards
requires management (o make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the upplication
of policies and teporied amounts of assets, liabihtics. income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historiesl cxperience and various other faciors that are
believed (o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which formn the basis of making
the judgments about canying valucs af assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ trom these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rovisions to
gccounting estimates are recognized in the period m which estimates are revised 1l the revision
affects only that petiod. or in the period of the revision and fuhure periods if the revision affects
both current and futare periods.
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Information about significant areas of esttmation. uncertainly and critical Judgmenis o applying
accounting policies that have the most sirmificant ¢ifeel on the amoustls recopnised nthe
financial staternents 15 discussed in the cnsuing parugraphs

2.4.1  Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the usceful lives and residual value ol property, plant and cquipment on a
reirular basis, Any change in estimales in future years might alfect the carrying amounts of the
respective ttoms of propeny, plant and equipments with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and impairment loss,

14.2  Provisionfor inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spare parts and loose tonls and stock in
trade on a regular basis. Proviston is made tor obsnlescence if there is any change in usage pattern
and physical form of related stores, spare parts and loose tools, further carrying amount of stock
in trade is adjusted where the net realisable value is helow the cost. Further the carmying amounts
of trade and other receivables are assessed on a regular basis and if there is any doubt about the
realizability of these receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

243  Taxation
The Comparty takes into aecount the current income tax law snd decisions taken by the taxation
authorities, Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income: tax
department at the assessment staze and where the Company considers that s vicw on tems ol
material nature is in accordance with lasy, the amounts are shown as contmgent liabilines.
The Company also regularly reviews the trend of propartion of incomes between Presumptive

Tax Regime income and MNormal Tax Regime income and the change in proportions, if
significant, is accounted for in the year of change.

244  Provisionof staff retirement gratuity
The Coumpany adopts certain actuarial assumptions as disclosed in note 8.2 to these financial
stalemenls for deternmmation of present value of defined benefit obligations. Any change in these
assumptions in fulure yoars might affect profit and loss in those vears,

2.4.5  Proavisionsand cantingencies

The Company reviews the status of all the legal cases on a regular basis. Based on the expected
cutcome and lawyers' judgments, appropriate disclosure or provision is made.

2.4.6 TImpairmentofassets
In making an estimates of future cash flows from the Company’s asscts including investment in

assoctate, the management considers estimated future cash flows and 115 vltimate net disposal
value.
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247

Fairvalne of investment property

The Company regularly revicws the fair value of investment property, the estimate of tair values
are direetly linked 1o market value conditions. Any change in cstimate will effect the carrying
value of investmoent properly with cotresponding impaceon profit and Inss account.

Standards, interpretations and amendments te approved accounting standards that are
not vet effective

The following standards, amendiments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will
be cfloctive for aceounting periods beginning onorafter 01 July 2014:

IFRIC 21- Levics ‘an Interpretation on the accounting for levies mposed by governments’
{effective for ammual periods beginning on or after | January 2014), The Interpretation clanfics
that the obligating event |hat zives tise to a liability to pay a levy is the activity described in the
relevant legislation that trigrers the pavinent of the levy. The interpretation iz not likely to have
an impact on Company’s financial slatements.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liubilities {Amendments to TAS 32) — {effective for
annual periads beainning on or after 1 January 2084). The amendments address inconsistencies
in currenl prachice when applying the oftietting eriteria in [AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presenmtation. The amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforeeable right
of set-off*; and thal some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent o net
settlement. The amendments are not likely to have an impact an Company s financial statements,

Amendment to TAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”™ Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Finaneial Assels (effective for annual periods beginning on or afler 1 January 2014). These
narrow-scopc amendments to LAS 36 Impaimment of Assets address the disclosure of information
about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if thatamoeunt is based on Fair value less costs of
disposal. The amendment has ng impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments 1o FAS 39 “Fmancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurcment™ Continuing
hedge accounting afler derivative novation (effective for annual periods bepinning on ar afier 1
Tanuary 20147, The amendments add a limited exception to 1AS 39, to provide relicf from
discontinuing an existing hedging relationship when 2 novation that was not contemplated in the
original hedging documentation mects specific criteria. The amendment has no impact of the
tinancial statements of the Company,

Amendments to [AS 19 “Employe: Benefits” Employee contributions — a practical approach
{effective for annual periods beginming on or after | July 2(H4). The practical expedient
addresses an issue that arose when amendments were made in 2011 to the previcus pension
accounting requirements. The amendments introduce a relicf that will reduce the complexity and
burden of aceaunting for certain contributions from employees or third parties. The amendments
are relovant only to defined benefit plans that involve contributions from employess or third
partics mecting ceetain criteria. The amendment hus no impact on the financial statements ot the
Company.

Amendments 1o [IAS 38 Intangible Assets and 1AS 16 Property, Plan and Equipment (effective
for annual periods beginning ot or after 1 January 2016) introducs severe restrictions on the use
of revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and cxplicitly state that revenue-based
methods of depreciation cannot be wsed for property, plant and cquipment. The rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-hased amortisation metheds for imangible assets is
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ingdppropriate can be overcame only when revenue and the consumption of the coanomic benefits
ol the intangible asset arc highly correlated”, or when the intangible assel is cxpressed as a
measure of revenue. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial
statements.

IFRS 10 *Censalidated Financial Statements” — {etffective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 205} replaces the parl of [AS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. IFRS 10 introduces a new approach to determining which investees should be
consolidated, The single model to be applicd in the control analysis requires that an investor
controls an investee when the investor 1s exposed, or has rights, w variable retums from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee. IFRS 18 has made consequential changes to 1AS 27 which is now called *Separate
Financial Statements” and will deal with only scparate financial staterenis, The amendment has
ng affvet on the financial staterntens of the Company.

[FRS 11 Joitt Arrangements” {eftective for antual periods beginning on ocafler | January 2015)
replaces TAS 3] “Interests in Joint Ventures®, Firstly, it carves out, from TAS 31 joinily controlled
entities, those cases in which although there is a separatc vehicle, that separation is ineffective in
certain ways. These arrangements are treated simifarly 1o jointly controlled assets/operations
under LAS 31 and arc now called joint operations. Secondly, the remainder of 1AS 31 jointly
controlled entities, now called joint ventures, are stripped ol the free choice of using the cquity
method or proportionate conselidation; they must now abways use the equity methed, IFRS 11
has also made consequential changes in [AS 28 which has now been named ‘Tnvesiment in
Associates and Joint Ventures’. The amendments requiring busincss combination accounting to
b applied to acquisitions of inlerests in a joint operation thal constitutes a business ace effective
tor annual periods beginning an or after 1 January 2016. The amendment has no impact on the
tinancial stalements of the Company. This standard has no impact on the financial statemets of
the Company,

[FRS 12 *Disclosure of Interest in Other Eniitics” (effective for annual periods berinning on or
after 1 tanuary 2013) combines the disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements (ie. joing operations or joint ventures), associates and’or
unconsolidated structured entities, into one place. The standard is not likely 10 have material
mnpact on the financial statements of the Company.,

TFRS 13 *Fair Value Measurement” (effective for annual periods beginning on ar aller | Janvary
2015) defines fair vahue, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets aul disclosure
requiretmnents for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 cxplains how to measure fair value when it is
requited by other [FRSs. It does not introduce new fair value measuremenis, nor does it eliminate
the practicability execptions to fair value measurements that currently exist in cerain standards.
This standard has no impact of the financial statements of the Company except [or certain
addiional disclosures.

Amendment 10 [AS 27 “Separate Financial Statement” (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after | Japuary 2016). The amendments to [AS 27 will allow entitics 10 use the eguity methag
te-account for invgstments in subsidiaries, joint venlures and associates in their separate financial
slatements. The amendments has no impact on the finuncial statements of the Company.

Agricullure: Bearer Plants [Amendment to IAS 16 and 1AS 41] (effective for annual periods
heginning on or after | Janvary 2016), Bearer plants are now in the scope of 1AS 16 Property,

Annual Report 2014 42 Bestway Cement Limited



- .t [] |
P R T i Rl

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

Plant and Equipment for measurement and disclosure purposes, Thercfore, a company can eleet
1o measure bearer plants at cost. Howuver, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to
be measurcd at fair value less costs 1o sell under [TAS 41 Apriculture. A bearer plant is 4 plant that:
is used in the supply of agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period.
and has « remote fikeliheod of being sold as agriculturad produce, Before matunily, bearer plants
are accounied Tor in the same way as scli-constructed itcms of property, plant and cguipment
during construction. The amendment has no impact on Lhe financial statements of the Campany.,

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycles (most amendments will apply
prospectively for annual period beginning on or after | July 2014} The new cycle of
improvements contain amendments to the following standards:

IFRS 2 *Share-based Payment’. [FRS 2 has been amended to clarify the definition of *vesting
condition’ by separately defining ‘performance condition” and ‘service condition’. The
amnendment also clanifics both: how to distinguish between a market condition and a non-market
performance condition and the basis on which a performance condition can be differentiated from
a vesting condition, The amendment has no itnpact on the financial statements of the Company.

IFRS 3 ‘Business Cambinations’. These amendments clarify the classification and nicasurement
of contingent consideration in a business combination, Further TFRS 3 has also been amended to
clarify that the standard does not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangements including joint opcrations in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
themselves. The amendment has no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

TFRS & *Operating Scgrments’ has been amended to explicitly require the disclosure of judgments
made by manugerment in applyving the aggregation criteria. In addition this amendment clarifies
that a reconciliation of the tatal of the repertable segmens’s assets to the entity assets is required
only if this information is regularty provided to the entity's chief operating decision maker. This
change aligns the disclosure requirements with those for segment liabilitics. The amendment has
no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 16'Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS 38 ‘Intangible Asscts’. The
amendments clarify the requirements of the revaluation model in TAS 16 and IAS 38, recognizing
that the restatement of accumulsted depreciation (amortization) is not always proportionate to the
change in the gross carmying amount of the asset. The smendment has no rnpact on the financial
statements of the Company.

IAS 24 ‘Related Purly Disclosure’. The definition of related party is extended (o include a
managemment entity that provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity,
either directly or through a group cntity. The arnendiment has no impact on the financial statements
ofthe Company cxcept for certain additional disclosures.

IAS 40 *lnvestment Property®. 1AS 40 has been amended to clarify that an entity should: assess
whether an acquired property is an investment property under [AS 40 and perform a separate
asscsstnent under IFRS 3 to determine whether the acquisition of the investment property
constitutes 2 business combination. The amnendment has no impaet ot the financial statements of
the Company.
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3 SICNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, except as stated innote 3.1.

31 Employees’ Benefiis
Gratuity - Defined benefit plan

The Company maintains an unfunded gratity scheme for all its eligible employeess. Annual
provision for gratuity is made on the basis of actuarial valuation carricd owt by using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Latest valuation was conducted asat 303 une 2014,

Change in accounting policy - defined henefit plan

IAS 19 {as revised in June 2011) "Employee Benefit" became effective during the period. The
amendments to LAS 19 changed accounting for defined benefit plans. The most significant
change relates to the accounting tor change in defined benctit obligations and fair value of plan
assets when they occur, and hence eliminate 'corridor limit' permmitied under the previous version
of LAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service cast. Naw, all actuarial gainand losses are
recognized immediately through ather comprehensive incorne. Furthermore, the interest cost
and expected return on plan assets used in previous version of TAS 19 are replaced with a net
tnterest amount under TAS 19 (as revised in June 2011, which is calculated by applying the
dizcountt rate on net defincd hability or asset. [AS 19 (as revised in Tune 201 1) introduces certain
chanyes m the presentation of the defined benefit cost including more extensive disclosures.
Effects of retrospective application of this change inaccounting policy has been disclosed innote
£.2.1. Third balance sheet as at beginning of the proceeding petiod is nol presented because the
retrospective change in aceounting policy docs not have a matenul cffect on the financial
statements.

Compensated absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an un discounted basis and aryg
cxpensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognized for the amount cxpected to
be paid  under compensated absences if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a resuht of past service provided by lhe emplovee, and the
obligation can be estimated reliably. The compensiated absences are pavable to employees at the
time of retirement / termination of service. The provision is detennined on the basis of last drawn
salary and accumulated leaves balance st the reponting date.

3.2 Taxation
Income tax expense comptises current and deferred tax, [Income tax is recognized in profit and
lass account except o the exient thatl 1t relates to items recognized directly in comprehensive
income or equity, in which case it 1s reeognized in comprehensive income or equity.
Current
The Company aecounts for current taxation on the basis of taxable income at the curren rates of
taxation after taking into account tax credits and rehates, if any, and any adjustment 1o tax

payable in respect of previous year in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001,
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Deferred

A defierred tax assct 1s revognized to the cxtent that it s probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary diffcrences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be
wilized, Defirred 1ax assots are reviewed at each reporting dute and are reduced 19 the exient that
itis no longer probable that the related tax benefiewill be realised.

Deferred tax is recoznized using the balance sheet liability method. providing [or wemperary
differcnce hetween the canying value of asscts and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax 15 measured at the 1ax rates (hat ace expected
to he applied to temporary difference when they reverse. based ot the laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deforred tax asscts and liabilities are offset if there
is a legally enforceable nghi to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate o income
taxes levied by the same tax authoritics on 1he sarne 1axable entity, but the Company intends Lo
seltle current tax liabilitics and assets on a net basis or the tax assets and liahilitics will be realised
and settled simultancously.

The effects on delierred taxation of the portion of income expected 1o fall under presumptive tax
regime is adjusted in accordanee with (he requirement of Accounting Technical Releasc - 27 ofthe
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, Delerred tax 15 charged or credited to income.

33 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive
ohligation as aresult of a past cveni. and it is probabrle that an outflow of economic benelies will be
reguired @ setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions arc determingd by discounting the expected future cash Nows at a pre tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specilic w the Lability.
The unwinding of discount is recopnized as finance cost,

34 Borrowing cost
Markup, miecrest and other charges on bomowings arc capitalized up to the date when the
qualifying assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Borrowing cost 1s meluded in the
related property, plant and equipment acquireds constructed out of the proceeds of such
borrowings. All other markup, interest and related charges are charged to the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arg incurred.

3.5  Properly, plant and equipment
Tangible asscis
Owaed
These arc measured at cost, which includes purchase price, import duties, directly attributable
costs and related bomowing costs less accurmulated depreciation and impaiteent loss, if any.

Frechold Jand and capital work in progress are stated at cost less impairment loss, ifany.

Normal repairs and mainienance are charged to the protit and loss account as and when incurred
whereas major improvements and modifications arg capitalized.

Depreciztion is charped to income applying the reducing balance method except leasehold land,
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buildings and plant and machinery. Buildings and plant and machinery are depreciated on straight
line method, Leascheld land 1s amorticed over the remaining period of the Fease. Rates of
depreciation/ estimated usclul lives arc mentioned innete 12,1,

Depreciation is charged on prorata basis from the month in which an assct s acquired or
capitalized, while na depreciation is charged for the month in which the assct (s disposed of T, Diys
in excess of fifteen days are considered as full month for the purpose of caloulation of
deprecialion,

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are taken to the profit and loss
account.

Leased

Leases moterms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease. Assets acquired by way of finance lease are stated al
amounts cqual to the fower of their fair value and the present vahie of minimum lease payments at
the inception of the Ivase less accumulaled depreciation and impaimment losses, if any.
Outstanding obligatinns under the lcase less finance charges allocated to the future periods are
shown as liability. Depreciation on assets held under finance lease is charred in 4 manner
comsistent with that for depreciable assets which are owned by the Company,

3.6  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if i 15 probable that the future economic henefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and that the cost of such asset can also be
measurcd reliably. These are stated at cast less accumutated amortizalion and impainnent Josses,
iany,

Amaortization of intangible asscts. haviny finite vseful life, is charged by applying straight ling
method over their astimated useful lives, $o as W wrnite ofF the cost of assets at 2mortization rate as
mentionad innote 13 to the financial statements,

Subsequent expenditare is capitalised only when it inereases the fulure soonomic benefit
embodied t the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recogniscd in profit and
loss account as incurred,

37 Investment property

Investment property 15 property held either to earn rental ingome or for capital appreciation or far
both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business, use in production or supply of gowds or
serviees or fur administration purposes. Investment praperty s initially measured at cost and
subscruently at fair value with any change therein recognized in profiLar loss,

Cost includes expenditure that is direetly attributable 1o the acquisition of the investraent
property.

Investment property 15 stated at its fair value at the balance sheet date, Gain or losses, arising from
the change in the fair value of invesiment property are recognized in profit orlogs for the period in
which they arise.

When the use of'a property changes such that it is reclassified as property, plantand equipment, its
[air value at the date of reclassitication became its cost for subsequent accounting.
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3.5 impairment
Non-financial assers

The carrying amounis of non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assel, arc
reviewed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impaimment, [fany
such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount
ol an asset or cash-generating umit is Lhe greater of s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, Inassessing value in use, the estimated fulure eash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discownt rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of maney
and the risks specific to the assct. For the purpose of impainment testing, asscts that cannot be
tosted individually are grouped togaether intg the smallest group of assets that gencrates cash
inflows from continuing usc that are largely independent of the cash millows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit, or CGLTY.

The Company’s corperale assets do not generate separate cash inflows, 1f there is an indication
that a corporate asscl may be impaired, then the recoverable amount i3 determined forthe CGU 1o
which the corporate asset belongs. An impainnent loss is regognised it'the carrying ameunt ofan
asset or its CGU exeeeds its estimated recoverable amount, ITmpairment losses are recognised in
profit and loss account.

[mpairment loss recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the Tass has deereased or ne longer cxists. An impainment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates uscd (o determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not execed the carrying amount that would
have been detennined, net of depreciation or amortication, it no impairment loss had been
recozmised,

Financial assets

Financial assets are asscssed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective
evidence that they arc impaired. A financial assetl is impaired if objective evidence indicatcs thata
loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss ¢vent had 8
negative cffect on the estimated future cash Mows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financtal asscls are impaired may include default or delinquency by a
deblor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enterbankmytcy.

Al individually significant asscts are assessed for specific impairment. All individually
significant assets found nol (¢ be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any
impairment that has been incurred but not yer identificd. Assets that are not individually
gigniticant are collectively assessed for impaimment by grouping togethar assets with sirmlar risk
characteristics,

An impairment loss in respect ol a fimancial agset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carmying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losscs arc recognised inprofitor loss and
reflected in an allowanee account. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recogmised
through the unwinding of the discount, When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrcase. the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss
account.
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a9 Foreign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in forcign cumrencies are reeorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the date of the
transaction. All menctary assets and lHahilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte Pak Rupess at the rate of exchange niling on the balance sheet date and exchange
diffcrences, ifany, are charged o income for the year.

Forcign operations

The agsets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates at the reporting date, The
income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Pak Rupees al exchange rates at the
dates ofthe transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised i other comprehensive income, and presented in
the forelgn currency translation reserve moegquity, When a [oreign operation s disposed off'in its
entirely or partally such that control, sigmificant influetce is lost, the cumulative amount in the
translation reserve related to that [oreign operation s reclassificd 1o profit or 1ass as part of the
raim o1 loss on disposal. When the group disposes of anfy part of I8 investment in an associate
that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence, the relevant proportion of
the curnulattve amountas reclassified o profitor loss.

310 Investments
Investments in subsidiary and associated company

Subsidiary is that enterprise in which the Company directly or indirectly controls, beneficially
owns or halds more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and / or
appoint more than 50% of its directors. Investments in subsidiary is stated at cost and the carmying
amount is adjusted for impairment, ifany.

Assoctates are those ¢ntitics 1n which the Company has sipm{icant influence, butl not control or
Jaint control, over the Moancial and eperatmg policics.

Investment in associares is accounted for under the equity methed and are recognised initially at
cost, The cost of the investment includes transaction costs, The financial statements include the
Company's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income ot equity-accounted
investess, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant
influence ceuses,

When the Company's share of losses execeds its interest 1 an equity-accounted investee, the
carrying amount of the investinent, ingluding any long-term interests that form part thereof, is
reduced to zero, and the recognition of further tosses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.

The Company has an associate which 18 a banking compuny engaged in commercial banking and
related scrvices. The  applhicability of Intermatonal Accounting Standard 39, Financial
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Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and  htemational Accounting Standard 44,
Investment properties has been defemred for bunking companies by the State Bunk of Pakistan
whereas 1AS 39 and [AS Hrare applicable to the Company. Accordingly, eguity accountings of
the associate is based on financial stutemenls prepured under wecounting frmmework applicable
to banking companies in Pakistan and Dnancial impact of this difference inapphicable accounting
framework on finsneial staioments could not be determimed due 1o luek ol relevant information,
except that surplus { defiei on revaluation ol avalable for sale investments of the associate has
teen aligned Lo lhe Company's aceounting palicy.

11 Siores,spare paris and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted averape cost and net realisable
value exeept far items in transit which are stated at cost incurrad upto the balance sheet date fess
impairment, if any.

For items which are slow maving and / or identifiad as surplus to the Company's requirements,
adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated net realizable value, The
Company reviews the carmying mnount of stores, spare parts and leoss tools on g regular basis and
provision is made for obsolescence,

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and cstumared costs necessary tomake the sale.

312 Stackintrade

Stocks of raw materials, work in process and Dimished goods are valued al the lower of weighted
average cost and net realisable vilue, Cost of raw matenial, work i process and finished goods
comprises of direct malerials, labor and appropriate manufacturing overheads. Net realisable
value sigmifics cstimated selling price less estimated cost of completion and estimated cost to
sell.

3.13  Revenuerecognition

Rewvenue from the sale of zoods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or recevable, net of retuens, trade diseounts and volume rebates.
Revenue is reeognized when significant risk and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the customers, recovery of the consideration is probable. the associated costs and possible retum
ol the goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the
gaods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, If it is probable that discounts will be
granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recogmized as 3 reduction
of ravenue as the sales are recognized.

The timing of transfer of risk and rewards vares depending on the individuals terms of the sale
agreements. For some international shipments transfer occurs on the loading of goods onto the
relevant carmier at the port.

Return on deposit is accounted for on o time proportion basis, Dividend income is recopnized

when the right to receive such income is established. Rental meome on investment property is
recognized whan due.
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314 Markup bearing borrowings

Markup bearing boreowings are recognized nitislly al cost representing the fair value of
consideration receved less auributable transaction costs, Subscquent to initial recognition,
markup bearing borrawings are stated a1 eriginal cosl less subscquent repayments, while the
difference between the otiinal recogmecd amounts (as reduced by periodic payments) and
redemprion value is recognized in the profit and joss account over the period of borrowings on an
effective rate basis. The borrawing cast on qualifying asset is included in the cost of related asset
as explained in note 3.4,

315 Finanocialinstruments

Financial ussels and biabilities are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of an instrument. Financial assets are derccogmised when the
Company Jooses contiol of the contractual rights that comprise the inancial assel, The Company
de-recopnizes the financial assets and Habilities when it ceases to be a party 10 such conlractusl
pravision of (he instruments. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial asscls and
financial liabilines s taken to profit and loss account.

Trade and other payahles

Liabifitias for trade and ather pavables are inilially recognised at fair value less any direetly
attributable transaction cost. Subsequent 10 initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost,

Trade debis and other receivahles

Trade debis and other receivables are initially recogmised al fair value plus any directly
attributable (ransaclion cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
castusing cffective inlerest method, less any impairment Insses. Known bad dobts are written off,
when identificd,

Avaiable forsale financial assets

Available for sale financial asscts are recognised initiaily at fatr value plus direetly attributable
Lransaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured ut fair vatue and changed therein, other than
impairment losses and forcign cummency ditferences on available for sale debit instruments, are
recognised in other comprehensive incume and presented in the fair value reserve in cguity, When
an investment is derecognised. the gam or loss sccumwilated in equity is reclassified to profit and
loss,

(Hfsetting of financial assets and fnancial liahilities
Financial assets and financial lishililies are offset and the net amount is reporied in the balance

sheet if the Company has a legally enforceable right to setoff the recognised amounts and intends
¢ither to settle on anet basis or to realize the assels and sctile the liabilities simultaneously.
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3.16 Cashandcashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow
staternent, cash and cash equivalents comiprise cash and bank balance, shornt term running finance
facilities, demand depasits. other short term highly liguid investments (hat are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of change.

3.17  Dividend

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as liability in the perind in which it is
declared,

318 Earningspershare

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profitand loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the peried. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit and loss attribulable 1o ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
nurmber of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shures,

319  Business Combination

Common contrel transactions are aceountel Mor as business combination under common control
atcarrying amounts in the financial statements,

4 Essued, subscribed and paid up share eapital
14 2013 4 anl3
Number of shares .o.{RUpees in thousands)....
Oirdinary shares of By, 00 cach {ssued for cash
515,346,496 514,163,532 5,153,465 5141636
Orrihinary shares of Ra. 10 cach issued a5 ully
4,038,422 64038422 paid bunus share 640,384 40,374
Allveated ordinary shares of Rs. 10 cach
- [ 182244 pursuanl o scheme of amalgamation - 11,529
579,384,718 579384918 Total £,703,84% 5,793,844

4.1 Bastway (Holdings) Limited, UK. is the parent company controlling 319,885,740 1.e, 55.32%
{2013: 319,835, 74} i.e. 55.32% ) ordinary shares ot Rs. 1 each of the Company and 38,164,582
{2013: 41,470,129) ardinary shares of Rs. 10 each and 39,121 271{2013:39,121,271) ordinary
sharcs of Rs. 19 each areheld by nominee dircctors and associated company respectively.

2014 23
5 Long term financing - secured Mot ....{Rupees in thousands)....
Laans from banking companies 31 - 3943750
Svidicate term finance facilities 52 - 1,925 ()0
- 5. 868,750
Current portion of long term finsncing - {1,052 778}
- 4 815,972
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014 I
Nolg ....[Rupces in thousands)....
5.1 Loans from banking companics
Term Finance from Allicd Bank Linmited 33 - 333,333
Term Finance from Habib Bank Lirmiged 33 - 300 00D
Term Finange from Hahih Bank Limited 53 - [.59] 667
Term Finance from Soneri Bank Limited 5.3 - 300,000
Term Finance foom Faysal Bank Limited 5.3 - 04,000
Term Finanee from Soncr Bank Limited 3.3 - 262,500
Term Finanee from Allicd Bank Lirmited 53 - 656,250
- 3.943.750
5.2  Svyndicatc term finance facilities
Tenm finanee from syndicate 53 - 1025000
Term Gnance rom syndicate 5.3 - 200,000
- [,325 000
5.3  These facilities have been repaid during the year.
6 L.ong term mosharaka - secured
Meezan Bank Limited .1 - 300000
Less; Current portion of long term musharaka - {10000
- 200000
6.1  This facility has been repaid during the year.
7 Long term shirkat-ul-mclk - sccured
Duhai Tglamic Bank Pakistan Limited T.1 - 200,600
Less: Cuwrent portion of shirkat-ul-melk - { 100,000}
- 100,004
7.1 This facility bas Been repaid during the year,
3 Deferred linbilitics
Restated
Deferred taxation &1 5,120,486 3,860,507
Provision for gratuity 8.2 199,730 164451
Provision for compensated absences 23 19,567 22,892
5,349,783 40539210
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8.1 Defereed tax liability i3 recognised on following major temporary differences:

2014 2013
Note ...{Rupces in thousands).. ..
Tanable temporary duferences
Accelerated depreciation 4,571,911 4,273,550
Accelerated amortization 7.348 £,963
Cash flow hedge - (122}
Surplus on revaluation of available for sale investments 22,469 42.033
Share of profit in asscciated company 528,767 460 87%

5,130,486 4 T2 322
Deductible temporary differences

Liability against asscts subject to finance lease - f15.663)
Unabsarbed 1ax losses - {900,091
- {915,755}

8.1.1 5,130,486 3,866,567

8.1.1 Movemenl of deferred tax liability is as follows:

Opening balance 3,866,567 1,380,163
Transferred from MOL under Scheme of amaigamation - 311,786
Charge on cash flow hedge reserve 122 329
{Credit) / charge on revaluation of available for sale investments {19,593} 54 439
Charge recognised in profit and loss account for the year 1,283,3%i 2,119,798
Closing balance _5,130,486 1.866.567

8.2  The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follow:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 199, 73) 64,451
Met liability at end of the ycar 199730 164,451
Restated
Opening balance 164,451 125,605
Transferred from MCL under Scheme of amalgamation - 10,994
Charge for the year 42 076 37,873
Actuartal loss on gratuity valuation 7,165 4,475
Benefits patd during the year {13,900) (14596}
Closing balance 199,730 164,451
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8.2.1

8.3

Annual

2014 2013
Mot cond Bupees in thounsands)...,
Expense recognised in profit and loss account:
Currenl servies cost 23,947 19,333
Tnterest cost 18,109 14,921
Actuarial losses recoghised - 3,714
42,076 37,073
Actoarial Assumptions
2014 2013
Yaluation discount rate [3.25% 11.50%
Salary mcreasc rale 12.50% 11.50%

Agsurnplion eegarding [ulure mortality are based on EFU 1961-66 ultimate moctality tables,
Fxpected gratuity expense for the nexl Onancial year is Rs. 50.327 mallion (2013 Rs. 40,05

million),
Historical information

Present value of the defined benefit obligation

2014 203 2012 2011 2010
v {Rupees in thoosands)....
Preseot value of defined
bunefil obligution 199,730 164 451 |25 605 105 421 E5.085
Met [ability at end ol the year 199,730 164.45] 125 605 105421 83085
Effect due fo change in accounting pelicy is given blow:
30 June 20E3 (H July 212

---.[Rupecs in thousands)....
Present value of defined benetit obligation as previously reported 140,140 105,769
Effect of change in accounting policy 24,311 19,836

164,451 125,605

Related tax effect 6,695 4 463
unappropriated profit 17,616 14,3573

This change has also eesulted in recognition of experience adjustment on defined benefit obligation
amounting ta Rs, 5.2 miillion, net of (ax in other comprehensive inceme for the vear ended 30 June

214,

Actuarial valuation of compensated absences has not been carried ot sinee the managemaent

believes that the effect of actuarial valuation would nothe material.
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2 Trade and other payahles 2014 2013
MNote  .L[Ropecs in thoosands)....
Puvithle to contraciors and suppliers 1,407,049 137 980
Acerued habhties i | 1 843,907 1. %25 525
Advances [Tom custoners ), TRE K440
Securily deposils 47 874 44431
Retenlion money 15,383 7910
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 695,770 53H.255
Workers Welfare Fund puyable 105,595 4 352
Excize duty payvable 37,189 23,894
Advance rent of investment property 1486 7168
{}her payables a2 67,143 E37 811
Donation payable to Bestway Foundation - unsecurcd 97218 61,231
hvidend Pavable 423,690 276,670

4,899,142 4.422,079

9.1  This includes an amount of Rs, 27,46 million (2013: Rs. 11.32 million} payable o Sui Northern
(ias Pipeline Limited {SNGPL)Y apainst pas consumnpuon during the month of June 2014, The
Company has issued bank guarantecs in the normal course of business to SNGPL for commercial
and industrial use of gas for an amount of Rs. 1,252.41 million {2013: Rs. 1 252,41 million).

9.2 Thisincludes anamount of Rs. 42 million {201 3: Rs. 42 million) on account of provision, recorded
on a prudent basis, which the management feels will ultimately be required (o be paid 1o owners of
the land acquired for Hattar plant as ordercd by the Honorable Peshawar High Court. However,
the Company has filed an uppeal belore the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

1t Shart term borrowings - secured
Running finance from banking companies

Rarclays Bank Plc, Pakistan 10,1 1,351 25,446
Soneri Bank Limited 1.2 247,953 1498
Allied Rank Limited 10,3 1,008,438 633,718
Hahil Bank Limited 10.4 450,549 13501
Allied Bank Limited - 378564
Habib Bank Limited - 220,524
Askurl Bunk Limted 105 165,541

Meezan Bank Linuled 110.fs S00.0460

2,373,831 952,645

10.1 This represents the utilized amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 300 million for a period of
one year (2013 Rs, 300 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of une menth
KIBOR plus 1.00% (2013: one month KIBOR plus 1.00%) per annum. The tacility 15 seeured by
first pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future cument assets ol the Company tor
an amaunt of Rs. 667 million and ranking charre vver fixed asscts of the Company of the same
amount{2013: Rs_ 667 million).
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10,2 This represents the utili-od amount of a running finance facility of Rs. 300 mitlion for a period of
one year (2013: Rs, 300 raallion). Markup is payabie on quarterly basis at the rale of three month's
KIBOR plus 0.40% (2013 three months’ KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility 15 sceurcd
by first pan passu hypothecation charge on all present and fiture current assets of the Company
for an amount of Rs, 634 million £2013: Rs. 400 million).

10,3 This represents the utilized amount of a mnning finance facility of Rs. 1,150 miltion for o period
of one year (2013: Rs. 1000 million). Markup is payable on guarterly basis at the rate of onc
maonth KIBOR plus 0.40% {2013: one month KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The Facility
secured by lien over saving accounts and first pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and
future assets excluding land and buildings of the Company for an amount of Bs, 1,333.33 nullion
{(2013: Bs. 1,333.33 million).

10.4 This represents the utilized amount of runming finance facility of Rs, 970 mullion for a peniod of
one year (2013: Ry, 970 million). Markup is payable on quarterly basis althe rate of three month's
KIBOR plus 0.60% (201 3: three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) por antum, The Facility is secured
by irst pari passu hypothecation charge ower all present and future movables assets and current
assets of the Company for an amouat of Bs, 1,29 million (2013 Ks. 1284 million).

10,5 This represents the utitized amount of a running finance facility of Rs, 415 million fora period of
ane year (2013: Rs. 300 million}. Markup is payable on quarterly basis at the rate of three month's
KIBOR plas 0.40% {2013: three months' KIBOR plus 0.60%) per annum. The facility is secured
try first pari passu hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets of the Company
foranamount of Rs. 1,157 13 million (2013: Rs_ 400 million).

106 This represents the utilized amount of running finance facility of Rs, 580 million (2013 Rs. Nil)
Firr 4 peniod of one yesr. Mark up 15 payable on guarterly basis at the rate of six month's KIBOR
plus 0.40% per annum. The facility s secursd by pan passu charge on all present and future
curren! and Axed asscts of the Company excluding land and buibdings for an amount of
s 1,333.34 mallion (2013; Bs, Nil} and ranking charge by way of cquitable morteage without
requiretnient of notation in revenue recotds for Rs 1,333.34 mmullion (2013 Rs, Mily on all present
and future land and buildings of the Company.

1.7 Unawvailed facilities

The Company has running finance facilities and other short term borrowing facilities for an
amount of Bs. 7,126 million (2013 Rs. 10,143 million} which the Companry has not availed at the
vearend.

Facilitics of letters of guarantee and Jotiers of credit amounting 1o Rs. 309,08 milfion 12013 Rs,
3544 million) and Rs. 5,626.03 million {20132 Bs. 4,759.4 millian) respectively are available to
the Company. Facilities of letters of guarantee are secured by first pari passu charge on present
amnd future assets of the Company.

Il  Contingencies and commitments 4 2013
Mote ... Rupces in thousands)....
In respect of bank guarantees 1.1.1 40,457 0265
In respect of tetters of credits 1,24 567 321415
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11.1 Contingencics and commitments
11.1.1  All bank guariantees are sceured by way of charse over operating lixed asscts of the Company.

11.1.2 Competition Commtission of Pakistan (CCPY issued 3 show cuuse notice dated 28 Qcrober 2008
to 21 comend companics (meluding the Company) under scetion 30 of the Competition
Ordinanee, 2007, On 27 August 20059, CCP imposced a penalty ol Rs. 7 1 enillion on the Company
and MCL. The cement manufacturers (incloding the Company) have challenged the CCP arder in
Honourable High Court and the Honourable High Court has passed an interim order restraining
CCPfrom taking any adverse action against these 2 | cement companies.

Against the above referred order of CCP dated 27 August 2009 an appeal was also filed as
ahundant cautinn in the Honowable Supreme Court of Pakistan under Section 42 of the
Competition Ordinance, 2007, During the year, the case was fixed for hearing on rime to time,
however because of non availability of defendant, the hearings of the case were adjourned. These
appeals are still pending and management is confident of'a favorable outcome of the case,

.13 A demand of R, 2528 million was rased by the Sales Tax Awthoridics in September 1997
disallowing input sates tax adjustment of Rs. 2.528 million paid on impert of dump truck having
C&F value of Rs, 8511 million in Navember 1996, The Company went into appeal betore the
Cullector Customs, Central Excise and Sales Tax (Appeals) which was decided in favour of the
Cumpany. On appeal by the Department, Customs, Central Excise & Sales Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Peshawar, decided the matter in favour of the Department. The Company filed appeal
against the decision of the Tribunal before the Honoruble Peshawar High Court, which was
dismissed. The management has filed appeal before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the order of the Honorable Peshawar High Court where the matter 15 pending. No
provision has been made in the financial statements as the management is confident of a
Favourable vutcorne ol the case,

11.1.4 Based an an audit for the period from July 2009 to June 2410, DCLR vide Order-in-Original o,
23 of 2013 daced 30 April 2013 raised aggregate sales tax demand of Bs, 63917 millien against
the Company mainly on suppression of production. On appeal by the Company, the CIR{A) vide
order dated 25 July 2813, sel aside the order i orfgmal and directed the DCIR for a fresh
consideration ol the matier. The Company has filed an appeal befare the Honorable ATIR against
the order of the CTRIA). which is pending for adjudication. The management is confident of a
Tavorable oulcome of'the case.

11.1.5 Initiaily DCIR raised assessment against the Company for the tax vears 201010 2012 for alleged
suppression of production worked back by using *Standard Gypsum Consumption Formula®, On
appeal by the Company, the CIR{A) vide order dated 25 July 2013, sct aside the assessment for
denovo consideration with directions, The Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable
ATIR against the set-aside order of the CTR{A)Y, which 15 pending for adjudication.

Onward the DCIR completed the re-assessment assuming production at 88 % of rated capacity,
withoul conironting the Company and raised an aggregate demand of Rs. 10,309 million (BCL
Rs. 6,982 million and MOL Rs. 3,327 million) for the tax vears 2010 to 2012, On appeal by the
Company, the CTR{A) vide order dated 22 May 2014 endorsed the view ol the DCIR ot reduced
agsumead production of the plant to B6.66 % of rated capacily vsing weighted average capacity
utilization of another cemenl manulaclurer. The Company has filed an appeal before the
Honorable ATIR against the order of the CIR(A), which is pending for adjudication
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11.1.6

11.1.7

11.1.8

11.1.9

11,2

Management is conflident Lhat the matter will ultimately be decided in favor of the Company.

The DCIR, vide different orders in original, raised an aprreprate demand of Rs. 10,94 million
apainst the Company for the years 2006 t 2012, on account of Federal Fxcise Duty on
management fee paid to Bestway {Holdings) Limited and management fee regeived Tom
Mustehkam Cement Limited (Nuw merged with the Company) and MAP Rice Miils (v}
Limited. On appeals by the Company, the CIR{A) has parlially confirmed the issuc. The
Company as well as the Department filed cross appeals belore the ATIR against the decision of
the CIR{A). The ATIR. vide its order dated 26 Junc 2014, decided the matter aguinst the
Company. The Company iniends to file an appeal before the Honorable Islamabad High Court
against the decision of the ATIR. The Company anticipates a favorable outcorng in this malter,
however, 1n the meantime.  the amount demanded has been paid by the Company and will be
refunded to the Company on favorable sulcome.

Sales Tax [}epartment has raised tax demand of Rs. 52.75 million vide order dated 27 March 2010
mainly for misconstructed / duplicate demand of Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sale of
clinker and rejection of input tax on certain ¢ligible itenis. On first appeal, the CIR { A) confitmed
the order while an second appeal by the Company the Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue vide order dated 24 February 2011 has set aside the assessment for denovo
consideration, resultantly no demand exists at the moment. The Company has also filed an appeal
befure Islamabad High Court against the set aside order praying for annulment of Ure assessment.

In re-assessment pracecdings the Department again maintained the assessmoent at a tax demand of
Rs. 52.75 million vide order duted 14 September 2012, On appeal, the CIR(A) vide an order
dated 21 November 2012, set aside the assessment for denove consideration, hence no demand
as of rrday.

There ar¢ ¢cerlain other cases oatstanding as on 30 Jung 2014 other than those disclased in these
tinancial staternents. The management assess and claims favorable outcome it these cases and
the lawyers have also asserted management claims in respect of faverable outcome.

Income tax related contingencies are disclosed in note 31 to these financial statements.

Share of contingencies in associated company

2014 2013
- Rupees in thousands)....
Contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees given 892.629 BIT. 188
Contingent liabilitics in respect of performance
and bid bonds, warrantics, ete. 9,423.ﬂﬁ§_ 8,604 166
Trade related contingent liabilitics 13.028,977 12,367,549
Others 962,093 1. BO7. 141
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

12.1.1 Duepreciation un operating tixed assets has been allocated as follows:

2004 203
Nate ....{Rupees in thousands)....
Cost of sales 25 1,047,644 61,047
Adminisirative expenscs 20 8,151 7720
Msinbution cosl 27 5,236 4,280
1,061.031 873,953
12.1.2 Disposal of opcrating fixed assets
Doseription Cosit Book Sale  Gain /! (loss) Mode of Sold tn
value  proceeds dispnsal
—- Rupess in thousands—e-eae---
¥ehicles
Sozuks Cultus MNEG-374 T2 240 360 120 Negatigtion  Exeeutives
Mitsubishi Laneer M5-342 9 259 259 - Mewottalion  Feculives
Huracda Civig MY-135 1.555 444 gr9 3¥3 Megotlalion Exectlives
Sweuki Cultws BG-325 T8 245 30T G2 Megotiatian  Exeeutives
Suwruki Alto WE-4A1 B2 21 211 [ Megoliation  Exceutives
Henda Civic BB-R6d 1.304 261 260 (1) Megotiation Excoutives
Suzaki Cultus K1-315 TER 250} 343 T3 Newotigtion  Exeewtives
Suruki Alto KK-402 H02 207 ng A7 Mewotiation  Cxecutives
Suguki Allo KX-756 519 104 LY B3 Meputiation Txecutives
Suaoki Al MK-470 B0k 193 192 {1} Mepotation  Txeculives
Sueuki Al WK -468 ab2 196 246 L Mepsiation Execulives
Mitsulizhi Lancer [.G-695 O¥5 |88 7L 523 Megetiation M Khalid Rasheed Sheikb
Snzuki Alle MK-463 anl T a5 91 NWepotigtion  Exccutives
Suzuki Aleo MC-385 540 148 285 137 MWepsiation Excoutives
Swenki Cullus ME-227 LKL 134 114 B0 Megatiation Baevutives
Dumper 3tes 0 3530 25850 Negotation  Bashic Eban and Brother
Flant and saachinery
Whuel Loader JA2E 0 26U 1,430 {B417 Megatiation Fromtier Punjab Carriage
Wheel Loader 3628 2481 L.#30 (8317 MNesotiation Al Rehman & Co
Quary Equipment
“issan Dumper TKG-358 3,160 Rd3 4.5 3240 Megatiation M5 Tour Khan
Missan Dumper THO- 184 32m 558 4043 3227 Megnotialon  Mr Taur Khan
Lhuarry Equipment g 250% 3,773 A2nh Neaotatmon MY Magsood & Troshds
Chana
{Juarry Equiptment 18312 4547 [6.470 1,503 MWepotiation Bashe Ehao and Brotters
4 50,830 18,518 42,802 24,284
pa il i 19,245 3.6 10,518 4,564
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

12.2  Capital work in progress 2014 203
Naole ....{ Rupces in thonsands). ...
Opening balance 360,533 [ 7.541
Transterred rom MCT under Schema of amalgamation - 3,003
Additions during the year 12.2.1 1,046,563 165,034
1,407,096 188,278
Transforred to operating fixed assels:
Flant and machinery {2#10,584) (LB.S61)
Buildings on frechold land {4,048} (8,784}
{914,632) (27,745}
1222 492 464 360,533

12.2,1 This includes borrowing cost capitalised amounting to Rs. 38.731 million calculated at a rate of
103.33% perannum (2013: Rz, 0.86 million at 11.71% per annum).

12.2.2 Treak up of capital work in pragress is as follows:

Plant and machinery and other caquipment 477,223 281127

Advances for capital work in progress 15,241 72,406
492,464 360,533

13 Intangible assct

Cost

Opening balance 83,411 53411

Addilions duting the year - -

Closing balance 53411 3341l

Amortization T

Opening balance 15.118 %343

{Charge for the year 13.1 5,919 3,775

Closing balance 21,037 15,118

Carrying value 32,374 38203

Amartisation rate 15% T 15%

13.1  Amortization on intangible asset has been allocated as fellows:

Cost of sales 25 5,919 6,775

5919 6,775
14 [nvestment property

Crpening balance 347 883 347 883

Surplus on remeasurement of investment properly

tor fuir value td.1 31,791 -

Transfer to property, plant and equipment 14.2 {33,889 -

Closing balance 345,785 347 HE3

Annual Report 2014 61 Bestway Cement Limited



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

T4.F  The investtnent property is 2 portion of head office building held for letting. On 30 June 2814, an
independent exercise was carried out to calculate the fair value of investment property, To assess
the Jand and building prices, market research was carried out in 1he urea stound the plat where the
investment property is siluated. Fair value of invesiment properly 15 based on independent
valuer's Judprment sboutl average prices prevalent on the said daw and has been prepared on openiy
avatlable / provided infrmoanon alter making relevant inguitics from the market, YValuation was
carmied out by an independent valuer who holds a recognized and relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and category on the investment property
being valued,

14.2  During the year, portion of building measuring 1 474 square feet was transterred from investment
property to owner occupied property due to start of owner occupation of this previously rented

puortion,
15 Long term investment 2014 2013
Mote ....[Rupees in thoosands)....
Investment in related party - at cost - quoted
Associated company - Lnted Bank Limited 15.1 8,444,561 78933979
8,444,561 7533979
151  Cost of investment (93,649 694 ordinary shares
(2013: 93,649,694 ardinary shares of Rs. 10 each) 1,862,803 | 862 803
Past sequisition prodits brought forward - net of dividend 4,608,783 4,062,219
6,471,586 5,925,042
Profit for the vear 1,462,211 1,436,217
Dividend received during the year {983,322) (889,673)
678,589 546 544
Company's share of the associate’s exchange reserve 1,060, 489 1,043 (17T
Company's share of the associate's surplus
on revaluation of available for sale invesiment 124,597 420,525
Company's share of the cash Mow hedpe reserve - {1,219
8.444.501 7,933 470

15.1.1 This vepresents 7.65% share (2013 7.65%) in the cquity of 1,224.18 million (2013; 1,224.18
million) shares of Rs, 10 cach in UBL. an assaciated vndertaking. Bestway Group as g whole
controls 61.38% (2013 51.07 %) equity in UBL.

Summarized financial statements of the associated company are as follows:

Asscls Liabilitics Income Profitc after tax
20t4  (Rupess in million) 1,103,687 091,103 80,734 1,510
2013 {Rupees in million) 1,035,111 934,365 59,927 22,264

Markel valoe of investment m associsted company as of the your end was Rs. 15,786 million
{2013:Rs. 11,528 rmllion).
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

The reporting date of [nited Bank Limited 15 31 Decernber. For the purpose of applying cquity
methed of accounting assets, liabiliies and profit and loss account are based on the vn-audited
consolidated condensed interim {inancial statements for the poriad coded 36 June 20

16. Longterm deposits

This meludes scournty deposits amounting to Bs. 70.29 million {201 3: Rs. 70.09 million) given for
the cleetricity conneetions of the plants.

17 Stores, spare parts and loose tools 2004 2013
Note «{Rupees in thousands)....
Stores, spare parts and loose tools L17d,16% 300,563
Stores and spare parts i transit BT 502 410,217
4,044,671 3,510,782
18 Stack in trade
Raw and packing material 231,037 282,378
Work in process 1,303,695 1,470,344
Finished stock 18.1 307,880 470,713
1,932,412 2323 435

18.1 This includes a stock amounting to Rs. 4.9 millioa (2013: Rs. 103 rmullion) which has been
dispatched to customer but risk and rewards are not yet transferred.

19 Tradc debts - considered good

This includes Bs, 154,01 million (2013 R, 7206 million) receivable from customers agamst

expuort sales,
2014 2013

20 Advances Note «...{Rupees in thousands}....
Aclvances Lo executives and emplovees- considercd gomd 2.666 4,287
Advanees o supphers and contractors - considered good Mans 205,753
Current portion of long 1erm advance 4,00} 4,003
404,784 214 043

21 Deposits and prepayments

Security deposits 4,875 4,773
Prepayments 16,643 59,823
21,518 64,598
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12

221

222

014 2ma3
Note ..[Rnpees in thousands}....

Due from Governmenl agencies
Advange tax - nel - 41 436
Customs duty 221 28373 28,373
Capital value tax 221 11,729 11,724
Excise duty 22.2 615,146 615,146
Yalzs tax - net IRS.AR7T 274 381

1,040,735 1,35 LUGY

This represents customs dulies paid in excess of 3% of the value assessed by (he custom
authorities for import of off high way dump trucks and the amount paid as Capital Value Tax
{CVT) on this import, The collector of customs assessed 30% duty and CVT (@ 7.5% of the
assessed value on import of ofl high way dump trucks and did not allow exemption available 1o
the Company under SRO No, 575(1) 2006 dated 06 June 2006. The Company depasited these
amnounts under protest as guarantee for clearance and filed an appeal hefore Manourable Sindh
High Court. The Honourable High Court granted the lesve of appeal and held that exemption (or
import of off high way dump trucks is available to the Company under SR No. 575(13 2006
dated 06 June 20006, therefore the excess amounts paid should be refunded to the Company,
Collector of customs filed an appeal in Honourable Supreme Court against the order of
Honourable High Court, however no stay was granted against the refund acerued to the Company,

The Company has obtained legal opinion on the basis of which i1 decided to account for these as
refund inthe beoks el account of the Company.

The lonourable Supreme Court of Fakistan in its judgment dated 14 April 2007 in a comparahle
case for levy of excise duty, dismissed the appeal filed by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR)
znd upheld the decisions made by the Honourable 1igh Courts of Peshawar, Sindh and Punjab.
[The dispute related to levy of cxeise duty on the retail price inclusive of exeise duty or retail price
cxeluding excise duty]. The FBR's point of view was that excise duty be caleulated on & declared
retail price inchusive of excise duty whereas the concerned respondents contended that the excise
duty would not be included in retail price for caleulation of excise duty payable o the
Government, The full bench of Supreme Court upheld the judgments made by High Courts and
dismissed the appeal of FBR. The FBR roved a review petition before Supreme Court of
Pakistan which 1s prnding. Based on the legal opinton, the management believes that the
Company's claim is valid and the amount is fully recoverable.

The Company has fited a claim for Rs, 615.15 million (2013: 615.£5 million) relating o duty paid
during the period June 1998 to Aprit 1999 which pursuant to the above decision was olherwise not
leviable and payable under the law. Commissioner Appeals rejected the claim of the Company,
and the Company has filed an appeal with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal {ITAT) against
unlawtul rejection of refund ¢laims. A number of hearings were condueted during the year but the
casc 15 vet tobe discussed.

The Company has obtained legal opinian on the basis of which it decided 1o account for this
amount as refund in the books of account of the Campany.
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23 Bank halances Mot
Current gecounts 231
Deposit accounts 232 & 23

L

4

2013

v ool Rupees in thousands}....

140,326 259570
0Y,%36 B3, [0
216,201 322 669

231 Thisincludes Rs. 62.22 million (2013: Rs. 46.45 million) held in current accounts maintained with

United Bank Limited, a related party.

23,2 Deposit accounts carry mterest rates ranging from 1% o 10 % {2013 1% to 10%) per annum.

23.3  This includes an amount of UJS$ 0.42 million (2013: US § 0.21 million) in US Dollar deposit

dccount.

24 Turnaver - net
ross turnover
- Local
- Export

Giovernment levies
Sales tax
Excise duties

Rebates und discounts

15 C'ost of sales

Raw and packing materials consumed 251
Fuel and power

Stores, spare parts and loose 1ools consumed
Repairs and maintenance

Salaries, wages and benefits 252
Suppart services

Tnsurance

Equipment rental

Lilities

Travelling, conveyance and subsistence
Communication

Printing and stationery

Entertainment
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32,169,414 735,025,939
5,021,006 4,784 (155
37,190,420 29,810,044
(5,106,100) (3.359.511}
(1,417,846) (1.263.827}
30,666,474 25,186,706
(1,715,946) (£, 112,660
28,950,528 24,074,046
2,680,760 2,186,543
11,718,999 10,115,073
803,265 558,985
95,240 A1 843
584,279 432,617
250,354 184,237
29,767 24,238
17,434 6,840
9,454 3456
59,227 39492
3,930 4,475
5,756 4,268
4,268 3.840
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25.1

25.2

26

Nate

Digpreciation 12.1.1
Amortization 131
Other manufacturing expensas

Chpening work in process

Transferred from MCL under Scheme of amalgamation
Closing work in process

Cost of goads mannfactored

Opening finished stock

Transferred from MCL under Scheme of amaigatmation
Closing finished stock

Raw and packing materials consumed

Opening balance

Transferred from MCL under Scheme of amalgamation
Purchases made duriny the vear

Closing balance

2014

2013

....(Rupees in thonsands)....

1,047,644 861,947
5919 6,775
18,426 17.229
17,330,722 14,538,298
1,470,344 847,087
- 303,997
(1.303,695) (1,470,344)
17.497.371 14,219,038
470,713 283,990

- 71,402
(397,880 {470,713
17,570,204 14,103,717
182,378 171,709

- 19.t6]
2,629,419 2,258,051
{231,037 (282.378)
2,680,760 2,186,543

Salanes, wages and benefits inchude staff retircment benefits amounting to Rs, 30.87 million

{2013: Rs. 27.22 million).

Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and benefits 261
Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Ingurance

Utifities

Travelling, conveyance and subsistence
Communication

Prinring and stationery

Entertainmeni

Advertisements

Donation 262
Legal and professional charges

Fees and subscription
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141,614
1,756
6,223
1,690
3,468

15,617
2,346
3,669
1,166

362

86,069

12,925

13,209

Bestway Cement Limited

446,543
1.5%4
7.961
1,841
3,356

13,877
1787
2,988

700
6735

79,553

15,682
3277



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2014

2m4 2013
Mats ...{Rupecs in thousands)....
Management charges 63 551 433
Audiors' rermuneration 64 2,753 4,336
Depreciation 1211 8,151 7320
Chher 1,087 2 BAH

302,155 595,465

26.1  Salarics, wages and benefits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 594 million
(201 3: Rs. 7.01 million).

26.2 A provision at 1% {2013: 1.25%) of the accounting preft afier tax for an amount of B, 85,51
million has been made for donation to Bestway Foundation, Bestway Building, 19-A, College
REoad, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, {2013 s, 78.60 million). The Chief Executive and the [ollowing
directors are among the trustees of the Foundation:

- Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez - Irfan A, Sheikh,

- Zameer Mohammed Choudrey - Arshad Mehmood Chandhary

- Cihulam Sarwar Malik.

MNeone ofthe trustees or thelr spouses have abeneficial interest in the Foundation,

26.3  This represents management charges of the parent company.

26.4  Anditors' remuneration

Annual audn lee 1,500 2862
Fee of half year review 00 393
Statutary certifications 75 106
Taxation services o3 E70
Out of pocken cxpenses 75 325

2,753 4,556

27 Distribution cost

Salaries, wagzes and benefits 271 45,730 30,744
Supporl services 1153 736
Rent, rates and taxes 10,900 7213
Repairs and maimnlenancs 1,280 1,398
Lltilities 850 =21
Travelling. conveyance and subsistence 6,520 7163
Communication 1.097 1,007
Printing and stalioaery 1,627 1.719
Entertainment . 1,301 1055
Advertising and promotion 6,052 324
Dgpreciation 12.1.1 5236 4. 2¥6
Fees and subscriplion 32,086 65,916
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2014 2013
«[Rupees in thousands}....

Freight and handling - L.ocal 83,118 51.21%
- Txpart 500,937 607.474

Other 2,027 1.673
6,974 797.798

271 Salanes, wages and bencfits include staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs, 3. 14 million{2013:
Rs 3. 10million),

28 Other ¢xpenses

Workers' { Prefit) Parlicipation Fund 495 458 378,397
Wiorrkers' Wellure Fund 101,244 -
596,702 378,397

29 Finance cost

Markup on lung term lnancing 308,544 761,946
Markup on lony lerm murabaha - 17,166
Markup on long lerm musharaka 21,984 35.069
Markugr on hability azainst assets subject to finance lease 4,2M) 11,944
barkup on short term borrowings 221,245 167,313
Exchange loss - net - 4,203
Bank charges and comumissions 15,027 11,487

462,030 L §28

3 Chther income

[ncome from financial assets

Profit on deposit accounts 51,794 20,267
Exchange gain - ngt 1,682 -
53,476 20,2687
Income from non financial assets
Cuin on disposal of operating fixed assets 24,284 4864
Rental income from investiment property 24,639 19,267
Cain on remcasucemen! of investment property to fair value 31,791 -
Management fee from relaled party - net 1,200 4915
Other 24981 6,052
84,895 35,103
138,371 55,370
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2014 2013
--{ltupees in thousands)....

J Taxation

Restated
Current 1,279,029 266 364
Deferred 1,283,329 2119798

2,562,419 2,386,162

31.1  Numerical reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by the applicable
tax rate is as follows:

Accounting profit } 11,113,045 2051128

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate of 34% (2013 353%) 3,778,435 3,038,305

Tax cffeet of low rates on certain income (570,978} (372,493
Minimum Tax (407 99k 184,002

Tax cffect of permanent difference (03,418) {3087}
Tax cifeet of income taxable under final tax reginme (391,923} (326,482}
Tax effeet on exempt income - {243
Tax effect of change in propartion of export sales to local sales 118,293 -

Tax rare revision 34%-35% - {134 .23%)

2,562,419 2,386,162

31.2  Theasscssments for the Assessment Year 2000-2001 through 2002-2003 were finalized by the tax
authoritics mainly by curtatling business ¢xpenes claimed by the Company and levymg
surcharge on minimum tax. The appeal for Assessment Year 2000-2001 was decided against the
Company by the Appellant Tribunatl Inland Revenue [ATIR] against which the Cotnpany tiled
reference with the Islamabad High Court which is pending adjudication. The appeal filed with the
Commissioner [nland Revenue {Appealst {the CIR{A)] for the Asscssment Year 2001 -2002 was
decided against the Company and for the Assessment Year 2002-2003 certain issues were decided
in Favour of the Company. Appeals by the Company against these orders are pending before
ATIR.

The assessments of the Comp